




Page 1 of 3 

 
MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING JUNE 16TH, 2015  PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

FOLLOWED BY PRYOR PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY MEETING 
CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
TUESDAY, JUNE 16TH, 2015 AT 6:00 P.M. 

 

The City Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma met in regular session on the above date 
and time in the Council Chamber upstairs at City Hall, 12 North Rowe Street in Pryor Creek, 
Oklahoma.  This meeting was followed immediately by a meeting of the Pryor Public Works 
Authority.  Notice of these meetings was posted on the East bulletin board located outside to the 
South of the entrance doors. Notice was also faxed to The Paper and The Times newspapers and 
delivered to the Council members. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER / PRAYER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/ ROLL CALL. 
Mayor Jimmy Tramel called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. The Prayer and the Pledge of 
Allegiance were conducted by Houston Brittain. Roll call was conducted by City Clerk Eva 
Smith. Council members present included:  Roger Willcutt, Cheryl Hedgpath, Yolanda 
Thompson, Houston Brittain, Greg Rosamond, Randy Chitwood, Ryan Rains and Drew Stott. 
Council members absent: none. 
 

Department Heads and other City Officials present:  City Attorney K. Ellis Ritchie, Police Chief 
Steve Lemmings, Fire Chief Tim Thompson, Assistant Fire Chief B.K. Young. 
  

Others:  Pryor Main Street Director BJ Cummings, Mehlburger Brawley Engineer Steve Powell, 
Reserve Police Officer Paul Devers. 
 

2. PETITIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE. 
(LIMITED TO 5 MINUTES) 

There were no petitions from the audience. 
 

3. MAYOR'S REPORT: 
There was no report. 

 

4. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT: 
There was no report. 
 

5. DISCUSS, POSSIBLY ACT ON CONSENT AGENDA. 
(ITEMS DEEMED NON-CONTROVERSIAL AND ROUTINE IN NATURE TO BE APPROVED BY ONE MOTION WITHOUT 

DISCUSSION. ANY COUNCIL MEMBER WISHING TO DISCUSS AN ITEM MAY REQUEST IT BE REMOVED AND PLACED 
ON THE REGULAR AGENDA.) 

a. Approve minutes of June 2nd, 2015 Council meeting. 
b. Approve payroll purchase orders through June 19th and July 3rd, 2015.     
c. Approve claims for purchase orders through June 16th, 2015. 

APPROVE PURCHASE ORDERS THROUGH JUNE 16TH, 2015. 
FUNDS    PURCHASE ORDER NUMBER        TOTALS 

 GENERAL 1420142896 - 1420142915 $ 139,171.88 
 STREET & DRAINAGE 1420142881 – 910625B 75,192.72 
 GOLF 1420142905 - 1420142752 15,824.38 
 CAPITAL OUTLAY 910607B – 910421B 2,127.07  
 REAL PROPERTY 1420142882 - 1420142853 1,815.00 
 RECREATION 1420142856 - 1420142827 14,128.98 
 LIBRARY  1420142944 – 1420142943 1,031.88  
 DONATIONS 1420142820 $          46.00 
   TOTAL        $ 249,337.91            
 

d. Acknowledge receipt of deficient purchase orders.  
There were no deficient purchase orders presented. 

e. Approve Appropriation Request for May 2015. 
f. Approve the Municipal Utility Board’s appointment of Dr. Arthur “Art” Sixkiller to Seat 

#3, term expiring July 1st, 2020. 
g. Approve closing of State Highway 20 from Adair Street to Rowe Street on June 20th, 

2015 for the Dad’s Drag Main Block Party sponsored by Pryor Main Street. 
h. Approve Jail Use Agreement between the Board of County Commissioners of the County 

of Mayes, State of Oklahoma and the City of Pryor Creek. 
i. Approve and authorize Mayor to sign Memorandum of Agreement by and between the 

City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma and Kolker & Kolker, Inc. Certified Public Accountants 
for fiscal year 2015 – 2016 and approve the expenditure of $23,000.00 for services listed. 

j. Approve year-end budget transfers recommended by Certified Public Accountant Ron 
Kolker as needed for fiscal year 2014-2015. 



Page 2 of 3 

 
MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING JUNE 16TH, 2015  PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

k. Approve expenditure of $3,780.00 to WebQA, Inc. for Code Enforcement, Permits and 
Inspections, Web Portal and Property Address Import for annual billing term of July 1st, 
2015 through June 30th, 2016. 

l. Approve Houston Brittain as Abatement Officer for the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma. 
m. Approve seeking bids for repair or replacement of Pryor Youth Organization building 

roof. 
n. Approve seeking bids for stabilization of walls for Pocket Park Project on East Graham 

Avenue. 
o. Approve seeking bids for sale of one (1) set of 5 to 100 pound dumbbells from the Pryor 

Creek Recreation Center. 
p. Approve seeking bids for sale of one (1) set of 5 to 100 pound dumbbells from the Pryor 

Creek Recreation Center. 
q. Approve acceptance of resignation from Pryor Police Department Communications 

Officer Bradley Kendall effective June 26th, 2015. 
 

Motion was made by Brittain, second by Willcutt to approve items a-q less items l, m, o, p, and 
q. Voting yes: Willcutt, Hedgpath, Thompson, Brittain, Rosamond, Chitwood, Rains, Stott. 
Voting no:  none. 
 

l. APPROVE HOUSTON BRITTAIN AS ABATEMENT OFFICER FOR THE CITY 
OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA. 

Motion was made by Rosamond, second by Thompson to approve Houston Brittain as 
Abatement Officer for the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma. Voting yes: Hedgpath, Thompson, 
Rosamond, Chitwood, Rains, Willcutt. Voting no:  Stott. Abstain (counting as a no vote): 
Brittain. 
 

m. APPROVE SEEKING BIDS FOR REPAIR OR REPLACEMENT OF PRYOR 
YOUTH ORGANIZATION BUILDING ROOF. 

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Willcutt to approve seeking bids for repair or 
replacement of Pryor Youth Organization building roof. Voting yes:  Thompson, Brittain, 
Rosamond, Chitwood, Rains, Stott, Willcutt, Hedgpath. Voting no: none. 
 

o. APPROVE SEEKING BIDS FOR SALE OF ONE (1) SET OF 5 TO 100 POUND 
DUMBBELLS FROM THE PRYOR CREEK RECREATION CENTER. 

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Brittain to table until the next meeting. Voting yes:  
Brittain, Rosamond, Chitwood, Rains, Stott, Willcutt, Hedgpath, Thompson. Voting no:  none. 

p. APPROVE SEEKING BIDS FOR SALE OF ONE (1) SET OF 5 TO 100 POUND 
DUMBBELLS FROM THE PRYOR CREEK RECREATION CENTER. 

Motion was made by Brittain, second by Chitwood to table until the next meeting. Voting yes:  
Rosamond, Chitwood, Rains, Stott, Willcutt, Hedgpath, Thompson, Brittain. Voting no: none. 

q. APPROVE ACCEPTANCE OF RESIGNATION FROM PRYOR POLICE 
DEPARTMENT COMMUNICATIONS OFFICER BRADLEY KENDALL 
EFFECTIVE JUNE 26TH, 2015. 

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Rosamond to approve acceptance of resignation from 
Pryor Police Department Communications Officer Bradley Kendall effective June 26th, 2015. 
Voting yes:  Chitwood, Rains, Stott, Willcutt, Hedgpath, Thompson, Brittain, Rosamond. Voting 
no:  none. 
 

Thanks was given to Officer Bradley for his service. 
 

ADDENDUM 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

TUESDAY, JUNE 16TH, 2015 AT 6:00 P.M. 
 

1. DISCUSS, POSSIBLY ACT ON APPROVAL TO AWARD RE-STRIPING BID FOR 
GRAHAM AVENUE TO ADVANCE SERVICES, LLC IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$29,018.35.  (ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE - $30,000.00) 

Motion was made by Rosamond, second by Chitwood to approve to award re-striping bid for 
Graham Avenue to Advance Services, LLC in the amount of $29,018.35.  (Engineer’s estimate - 
$30,000.00) Voting yes:  Rains, Stott, Willcutt, Hedgpath, Thompson, Brittain, Rosamond, 
Chitwood. Voting no:  none. 
 

2. DISCUSS, POSSIBLY ACT ON APPROVAL TO HIRE PAUL DEVERS TO FILL 
VACANT DISPATCH POSITION AT THE POLICE DEPARTMENT AT RANGE D, 
STEP 1 (ANNUAL SALARY OF $28,597.00).   

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Brittain to approve to hire Paul Devers to fill vacant 
Dispatch position at the Police Department at Range D, Step 1 (annual salary of $28,597.00) 



Page 3 of 3 

 
MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING JUNE 16TH, 2015  PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

effective June 22nd,2015. Voting yes:  Stott, Willcutt, Hedgpath, Thompson, Brittain, Rosamond, 
Chitwood, Rains. Voting no:  none. 
 

6. COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
a. BUDGET / PERSONNEL (ROSAMOND) 
Rosamond reported that the Budget / Personnel Committee met last week and most of those 
items were discussed earlier. A few items will be presented at the next Council meeting. 
b. ORDINANCE / INSURANCE (CHITWOOD) 
Chitwood reported that the Ordinance / Insurance Committee met last night. The results will be 
presented at the next Council meeting. 
c. STREET / MAINTENANCE GARAGE (WILLCUTT)  
Willcutt reported there will be a special meeting for the Street / Maintenance Garage Committee 
on July 6th, 2015. 
 
 

7. UNFORESEEABLE BUSINESS. 
(ANY MATTER NOT REASONABLY FORESEEN PRIOR TO POSTING OF AGENDA.) 

 

There was no unforeseeable business presented. 
 

8. ADJOURN. 
Motion was made by Willcutt, second by Brittain to adjourn. Voting yes:  Willcutt, Hedgpath, 
Thompson, Brittain, Rosamond, Chitwood, Rains, Stott. Voting no:  none.  
 

PRYOR PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER. 
Mayor Tramel called the Pryor Public Works Authority meeting to order at 6:35 p.m. 
 

2. DISCUSS, POSSIBLY ACT ON APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF JUNE 2ND, 2015 
MEETING. 

Motion was made by Stott, second by Chitwood to approve minutes of June 2nd, 2015 meeting. 
Voting yes:  Hedgpath, Thompson, Brittain, Rosamond, Chitwood, Rains, Stott, Willcutt. Voting 
no:  none. 
 

3. UNFORESEEABLE BUSINESS. 
(ANY MATTER NOT REASONABLY FORSEEN PRIOR TO POSTING OF AGENDA.) 

No unforeseen business was presented. 
 

4. ADJOURN. 
Motion was made by Stott, second by Willcutt to adjourn from the Pryor Public Works Authority 
meeting.  Voting yes: Thompson, Brittain, Rosamond Chitwood, Rains, Stott, Willcutt, 
Hedgpath. Voting no:  none.  
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES APPROVED BY MAYOR / P.P.W.A CHAIRMAN JIMMY TRAMEL 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

MINUTES WRITTEN BY CITY CLERK / P.P.W.A SECRETARY EVA SMITH  

_________________________________________________________________________________ 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-_____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE SECTION 7-4-2 REGARDING THE PARK BOARD 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA: 
 
That Pryor Creek City Code Section 7-4-2 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

(Deletions to existing ordinance stricken, additions underlined) 
 
SECTION I:  AMENDING ORDINANCE TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

 
A. Created:  The mayor, by and with the consent of the city council, shall appoint seven (7) 

persons, who shall constitute the park board of the city.  The members appointed by the mayor 
shall be appointed for terms of two (2) for one year, two (2) for two (2) years and three (3) for 
three (3) years from July 1, 1979.  All subsequent appointments shall be for a term of three (3) 
years, except appointments to fill vacancies, which appointments shall be made by the mayor, 
and which appointees shall serve the unexpired term of the member who they have been 
appointed to replace. 

 
B. Duties: The park board shall serve as an advisory board for the purpose of assisting the Mayor 

and Council in the operations of the parks and all public grounds of the city.  The control of 

operations of the parks and all public grounds of the city shall remain in the Mayor and City 

Council.  The park board shall have the duty and may consider and investigate any subject matter 

pertaining to the establishment, development, management, operation, maintenance,have the 
custody and care of the parks and all public grounds of the city, and control of beautifying, 
landscaping and improving the sameparks and all public grounds of the city, and all bills 
therefore shall first be approved by the park board and submitted to the city council for 
allowance, as other claims are allowed.  The park board may submit employment 
recommendations and job description recommendations for park related positions to the city 
council for approval.  All employees in park related positions shall beare hired by the city of 
Pryor Creek and are shall be under the supervision of the mayor and city council and subject to 
the disciplinary action by the same. 

 
C. Gifts: Contracts: The park board shall have the power and duty to recommend to the 

mayor and city council the receipt may receive gifts of money or other property on behalf of 
thewhich may be used or held in trust for the purpose given city, and may with the approval of 
the mayor and city council, enter into contracts for agreements with the board of county 
commissioners of the county and the state, through any commission created for the purpose in 
connection with the federal government. 

 
D. Organization: Meetings: At the first meeting of the park board, it shall organize by electing one 

of its members chairman, one of its members vice chairman and one of its members ex officio 
secretary-treasurer.  The meeting place of the park board is in the city council chambers in the 
Graham community building. 

 
E. Compensation: The members of the park board shall serve without compensation. 
 



SECTION 2. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict here with are hereby 

repealed to the extent of any such conflict. 

 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY. If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 

Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent 

jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision 

and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of this ordinance. 

 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session on this         

day of                          , 2015 

 
CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 

________________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Eva Smith, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

_______________________________ 

Kim Ritchie, City Attorney 

Dated:_____________ 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-_____ 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE SECTION 7-5-2 REGARDING DUTIES OF THE 
LIBRARY BOARD 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA: 
That Pryor Creek City Code Section 7-5-2 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

(Deletions to existing ordinance stricken, additions underlined) 
 
SECTION I:  AMENDING ORDINANCE TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 
The library board shall serve as an advisory board for the purpose of assisting the Mayor and Council in 

the operations of the City Libraries.  The control of operations of the Libraries shall remain in the Mayor 

and City Council.  The library board shall have the duty and may consider and investigate any subject 

matter pertaining to the establishment, development, management, operation, and maintenance shall have 

control of all libraries owned and operated by the city and shall have the power and duty to recommend to 

the Mayor and the City Council plans, ordinances, rules or regulations pertaining to the establishment, 

development, management, operation, and maintenance of all such libraries.  the library and with theThe 

library board shall have the power and duty to recommend for approval of the mayor and the city council, 

the purchase of books and other supplies necessary for the operation of the library.  The library board 

shall have the power and duty to recommend to the mayor and city council the receive receipt of gifts of 

money, books or other property which may be used or held in trust for the purpose given.  All gifts of 

money shall be properly accounted for, deposited and held, and expended according to state law.  All 

expenses upon claims shall be itemized, filed and paid by the city clerk, upon approval of the city council, 

as required by state law.  When said claims have been presented and payment authorized, they shall be 

delivered to the library board for delivery to the various claimants therfor.  The library board may submit 

employment recommendations and job description recommendations to the city council for positions 

within the library.  All employees of the library are employed by the city of Pryor Creek and are under the 

supervision of the mayor and city council and subject to disciplinary action by the same. 

 
SECTION 2. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict here with are hereby 

repealed to the extent of any such conflict. 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY. If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 

Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent 

jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision 

and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of this ordinance. 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session on this         

day of                          , 2015 

 
CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 

________________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Eva Smith, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

_______________________________ 

Kim Ritchie, City Attorney 

Dated:_____________ 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-_____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE SECTION 7-6-2 REGARDING THE CEMETERY 
BOARD 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA: 
 
That Pryor Creek City Code Section 7-6-2 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

(Deletions to existing ordinance stricken, additions underlined) 
 
SECTION I:  AMENDING ORDINANCE TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

 
A. Created:  There is a cemetery board, which is composed of six (6) members to be appointed by 

the mayor, with the approval and confirmation of the city council.  Each member of the 
cemetery board shall be appointed to hold office for a term of six (6) years, with the exception 
that the original members appointed to the cemetery board shall be appointed for terms of one, 
two (2), three (3), four (4), five (5) and six (6) years, respectively, and with the further exception 
that if a vacancy occurs in the membership of the cemetery board during the unexpired term of 
any member thereof, the mayor, with the approval and confirmation of the city council, shall 
appoint a successor to serve the unexpired term of the member whom he replaces.  Each 
member of the cemetery board shall hold office until his successor is appointed and qualified.  
The mayor and city council may declare a vacancy to exist in any membership on the cemetery 
board in any case where in the opinion of the mayor and city council, any member thereof 
through incapacity, illness or otherwise, is unable or unwilling properly to participate in the 
meetings, deliberations or functions of the cemetery board. 

 
B. Organization: Officers:  The members of the cemetery board shall meet within two (2) weeks 

after their appointment and confirmation to organize by electing from their members a 
chairman, vice chairman and secretary, who shall serve for a period of one year.  The cemetery 
board shall adopt from time to time such bylaws, rules and regulations, and amendments 
thereto, as may be necessary to effectuate the purposes of this chapter. 

 
C. Duties: The cemetery board shall serve as an advisory board for the purpose of assisting the 

Mayor and Council in the operations of the cemeteries owned and operated by the city.  The 

control of operations of the cemeteries shall remain in the Mayor and City Council.  The 

cemetery board shall have the duty and may consider and investigate any subject matter 
pertaining to the establishment, development, management, operation, maintenance, 
beautification and preservation of all cemeteries owned and operated by the city and shall have 
the power and duty to recommend to the mayor and the city council plans, ordinances, rules or 
regulations pertaining to the establishment, development, management, operation, 
maintenance, beautification and preservation of all such cemeteries.  The cemetery board may 
submit employment recommendations and job description recommendations for cemetery 
positions to the city council for approval.  All employees of the cemetery are hired by the city of 
Pryor Creek and are under the supervision of the mayor and city council and subject to 
disciplinary action by same.   

 
D. Compensation: The members of the cemetery board shall serve without compensation. 
 



SECTION 2. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict here with are hereby 

repealed to the extent of any such conflict. 

 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY. If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 

Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent 

jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision 

and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of this ordinance. 

 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session on this ___        

day of                          , 2015 

 
CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 

________________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Eva Smith, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

_______________________________ 

Kim Ritchie, City Attorney 

Dated:_____________ 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-_______ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE TITLE 9 BUILDING 

REGULATIONS AND CODES ADDING SECTION 9-1B-7 REGARDING 

UNDERGROUND LINES AND UTILITY LINES. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF PRYOR 

CREEK, OKLAHOMA: 

 

That Pryor Creek City Code Title 9 is hereby amended adding thereto Section 9-1B-7 to 

read as follows. 

   

Chapter 1, Article B, Utility Construction 

 

Section 9-1B-7:  UNDERGROUND LINES AND UTILITY LINES:    All installations of 

underground cable lines, telephone lines, communication lines, or other utility lines of 

whatsoever nature or type shall be installed at a minimum cover depth of not less than eighteen 

(18) inches below grade, or at such other deeper depth as may be required by applicable laws or 

regulations of the City, County, State or other governmental entity having jurisdiction thereof.  

 

SECTION 2. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict here with are 

hereby repealed to the extent of any such conflict. 

 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY. If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion 

of this Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court 

of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 

remaining portion of this ordinance. 

 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session on 

this ____ day of ____________, 2015 

 
CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 

________________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Eva Smith, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Kim Ritchie, City Attorney 

Dated:__________________________ 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-_____________________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE SECTION 10-1-1 REGARDING PLANNING 

COMMISSION - CREATION; COMPOSITION: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA:  

That Pryor Creek City Code Title 10, Section 10-1-1 is hereby amended to read as follows:  (deletions 

to existing ordinance stricken, additions underlined) 

Section I:  AMENDING ORDINANCE TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

 

10-1-1:  CREATED; COMPOSITION: 

 

A. Number; Compensation:   

There is hereby created within and for the City a Planning Commission, which shall consist of 

seven (7) citizens of the Citymembers, as hereinafter provided.  The members of the Planning 

Commission shall be nominated and appointed solely with reference to their fitness and without 

a reference to party affiliations, and shall serve without compensation, except as hereafter 

provided. Each member appointed by the Mayor and approved and confirmed by the City 

Council must be a current resident of the City at the time of appointment and remain a resident 

of the City throughout the members term.  If a member ceases to be a resident of the City 

during a member's unexpired term a vacancy shall occur in the position of the member. 

 

B. Appointment:   

The Mayor shall appoint the members of the Planning Commission, with exception of the 

member designated as "Ex Officio" as hereinafter stated, subject to approval and confirmation 

by the City Council. 

 

C. Term; Vacancies:   

Members of the Planning Commission shall hold office for a term of three (3) years.  When a 

vacancy occurs on the commission during the unexpired term of any member, an appointment 

shall be made by the Mayor subject to approval and confirmation by the City Council of a person 

to fill the unexpired term.   

 

D. Ex Officio Members:   

The Mayor, the General Manager of Utilities and the Building Official of the City shall be an ex 

officio members of the Planning Commission without voting powers, but shall receive no 

separate compensation apart from that of the other than their fixed salary as said officials 

received in the capacity of the Building Official position with the City. 

 

SECTION 2. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict here with are 

hereby repealed to the extent of any such conflict. 



 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY. If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion 

of this Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court 

of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 

remaining portion of this ordinance. 

 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session on 

this         day of                  , 2015 

  
CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Eva Smith, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

K. Ellis Ritchie, City Attorney 

Dated:____________________ 

 

  



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-_____________________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE SECTION 10-1-2 REGARDING PLANNING 

COMMISSION - QUORUM: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA:  

That Pryor Creek City Code Title 10, Section 10-1-2 is hereby amended to read as follows:  (deletions 

to existing ordinance stricken, additions underlined) 

Section I:  AMENDING ORDINANCE TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

10-1-2:  QUORUM: 

 Four (4)Five (5) members of the Planning Commission shall constitute a quorum for the 

transaction of business.  However, no action shall be taken and be binding upon the Planning 

Commission, unless concurred with by not less than a majority of all members comprising the 

Planning Commission. When a quorum is present a vote by the simple majority of the members 

present shall be required for the transaction of business of the Commission. 

 

SECTION 2. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict here with are 

hereby repealed to the extent of any such conflict. 

 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY. If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion 

of this Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court 

of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 

remaining portion of this ordinance. 

 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session on 

this         day of                  , 2015 

  
CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Eva Smith, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

K. Ellis Ritchie, City Attorney 

Dated:____________________ 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-_____________________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE SECTION 10-1-3 REGARDING PLANNING 

COMMISSION - MEETINGS; ORGANIZATION, RULES: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA:  

That Pryor Creek City Code Title 10, Section 10-1-3 is hereby amended to read as follows:  (deletions 

to existing ordinance stricken, additions underlined) 

Section I:  AMENDING ORDINANCE TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

10-1-3:  MEETINGS; ORGANIZATION, RULES: 

 Meetings of the Commission shall be held at the call of the chairperson and at such other times 

as the Commission may determine.  The provisions of the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act, OKLA. 

STAT. Tit. 25 §§ 301 et seq. as it now exists or as it may hereinafter be amended by the 

Oklahoma Legislature shall apply to all public meetings of the Commission.  The members of the 

Planning Commission shall, in June of each year, elect from their members a 

chairmanchairperson, a vice chairman chairperson and secretary, who shall serve in their 

elected office for a period of one (1) year and shall adopt from time to time such bylaws, rules 

and regulations and amendments thereto as may be necessary to effectuate the purposes of 

this Chapter. 

 

SECTION 2. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict here with are 

hereby repealed to the extent of any such conflict. 

 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY. If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion 

of this Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court 

of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 

remaining portion of this ordinance. 

 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session on 

this         day of                  , 2015 

  
CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Eva Smith, City Clerk 

 



APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

K. Ellis Ritchie, City Attorney 

Dated:____________________ 

  



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-_____________________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE SECTION 10-1-4 REGARDING PLANNING 

COMMISSION - POWERS, DUTIES AND AUTHORITY: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA:  

That Pryor Creek City Code Title 10, Section 10-1-4 is hereby amended to read as follows:  (deletions 

to existing ordinance stricken, additions underlined) 

Section I:  AMENDING ORDINANCE TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

10-1-4  POWERS, DUTIES AND AUTHORITY: 

A. Employment of Staff:  The members of the Planning Commission shall serve without pay.  It is 

the duty of such Planning Commission to prepare from time to time, plans for the systematic 

development and betterment of the City, as a place of residence or for business.  It shall have 

the power and authority to employ engineers, attorneys, clerks and a secretary, or other help 

deemed necessary, subject to the approval of the City Council.  The salary and compensation of 

such employees shall be fixed by the City Council and shall be paid out of the City Treasury as 

other officers and employees, and the necessary expenses incurred by the Planning Commission 

shall be paid out of the City Treasury as other legal expenses of the City government. 

A. General Powers, Duties And Authority: 

 The Planning Commission shall prepare from time to time plans for the systematic development 

and betterment of the City as a place of residence or for business.  It may consider and 

investigate any subject matter tending to the development and betterment of the City, and 

make recommendations as it may deem advisable concerning the adoption thereof, to any 

department of the municipal government, and for any purpose make or cause to be made 

surveys, maps or plans.  The Planning Commission shall inure to such other powers and be 

obligated to the performance of such other duties as shall be prescribed to it by the ordinances 

of the City or laws of the state of Oklahoma. 

 

B. SUBDIVISION Of Land: 

 1.  The Planning Commission may consider and investigate any subject matter tending to the 

development and betterment of the City and make recommendations as it may deem advisable 

concerning the adoption thereof to any department of the City government, and for any 

purpose make or cause to be made, surveys, maps or plans.  Before the final action shall be 

taken by the City Council, or in department in the City government, in the location and design of 

any public building, statue, memorial, park, parkway, boulevard, street and alley, playground, 

public ground, bridge or the change in any location of any street or alley, or the grade thereof, 

such question shall be submitted to the Planning Commission for investigation and report. 

 

 2.  All plans, plats or replats of land laid out in lots or plats and streets, alleys or other portions 

of the same intended to be dedicated to public or private use within the corporate limits of the 

City, shall first be submitted to the Planning Commission for its approval or rejection. 



 

 3.  The disapproval of any such plan, plat or replat by the City Council shall be deemed a refusal 

of the purported dedication shown thereon. 

B. Employment of Staff, 

 Payment of Expenses: 

 The Planning Commission shall have the power and authority to employ engineers, attorneys, 

clerks and a secretary, or other personnel or consultants as it shall deem reasonable and 

necessary for the performance of its powers and duties subject to approval of such employment 

of personnel or consultants by the City Council and upon such terms of employment as the City 

Council may approve.  The compensation of such personnel or consultants shall be paid out of 

the City Treasury as other officers, employees or consultants.  The necessary expenses incurred 

by the Planning Commission incurred in the performance of its powers and duties shall be 

appropriated and paid out of the City Treasury as other legally incurred expenses of the 

municipality, but in no event may the Planning Commission be authorized to create a deficiency. 

C. Uniformity of Regulations:  The Planning Commission may recommend division of the City into 

districts of such number, size and area as may be deemed best suited to carry out the zoning 

purpose.  All such regulations shall be uniform for each class or kind of buildings throughout 

each district, but the regulations in one district may differ from those in other districts. 

 

CD. Comprehensive Plan Considerations:   

Such regulations and recommendations shall be made in accordance with a Comprehensive Plan 

and designed to lessen congestion in the streets;  to secure safety from fire, panic and other 

dangers;  to promote health and general welfare;  to provide adequate light and air;  to prevent 

the overcrowding of land; to avoid undue concentration of population;  to facilitate the 

adequate provisions of transportation, water, sewerage, schools, parks and other public 

requirements.  Such regulations shall be made with reasonable consideration, among other 

things, as to the character of the district and its peculiar suitability for particular uses, and with a 

view to conserving the value of buildings and encouraging the most appropriate use of land 

throughout the City.The Planning Commission shall conduct a complete formal review of the 

municipality's Comprehensive Plan which is in effect on the date of passage of this ordinance 

not later than the last day (June 30) of the next fiscal year subsequent to the fiscal year in which 

this ordinance is passed and approved by the City Council.  Subsequent to the formal review of 

the municipality's Comprehensive Plan as specified in the preceding sentence the Planning 

Commission shall conduct and complete periodic formal reviews of the municipality's 

Comprehensive Plan on a schedule of ten (10) year intervals with each subsequent formal 

review to be completed no later than the last day of the tenth (10th) fiscal year following each 

preceding formal review. 

 

D. Public Projects: 

Before final action may be taken by the City Council, or any department of the City on the 

location, construction or design of any public building, statue, memorial, park, parkway, 

boulevard, street and alley, playground, public ground, or bridge, or the change in the location 



or grade of any street or alley, the question shall be submitted to the Planning Commission for 

investigation and report of its findings and recommendations to the City Council.  The report of 

the Planning Commission's findings and recommendation shall be completed and submitted to 

the City Council within sixty (60) days of the date such question was submitted to the Planning 

Commission for investigation and report, or such other time period as may be prescribed or 

allowed by the City Council. 

 

E. Additional Prescribed Authority:  The Planning Commission shall have additional authority and 

responsibility as the City Council shall from time to time prescribe. 

 Subdivision of Land: 

(1) The Planning Commission shall exercise jurisdiction over the subdivision of land within 

the corporate limits of the City. 

(2) The Planning Commission shall adopt regulations governing the subdivision of land 

within its jurisdiction.  Which regulations shall not become effective until same be 

approved by the City Council and published as provided by law for the publication of 

ordinances. 

(3) All plans, plats, or replats of land laid out in lots or blocks, and the streets, alleys, or 

other portions of the same, intended to be dedicated to public or private use, within the 

corporate limits of the City, shall first be submitted to the Planning Commission for its 

approval or rejection.  Before said plans, plats, or replats shall be entitled to be recorded 

in the office of the County Clerk, they shall be approved by the City Council. 

(4) Any plat filed without the endorsed approval of the City Council shall not import notice 

nor impose any obligation or duties on the City. 

(5) The disapproval of any such plan, plat or replat by the City Council shall be deemed a 

refusal of the proposed dedication shown thereon. 

SECTION 2. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict here with are 

hereby repealed to the extent of any such conflict. 

 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY. If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion 

of this Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court 

of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 

remaining portion of this ordinance. 

 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session on 

this         day of                  , 2015 

  
CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

 



ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Eva Smith, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

K. Ellis Ritchie, City Attorney 

Dated:____________________ 

 

  



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-_____________________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE SECTION 10-1-5 REGARDING PLANNING 

COMMISSION - ACT AS ZONING COMMISSION: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA:  

That Pryor Creek City Code Title 10, Section 10-1-5 is hereby amended to read as follows:  (deletions 

to existing ordinance stricken, additions underlined) 

Section I:  AMENDING ORDINANCE TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

10-1-5  ACT AS ZONING COMMISSION: 

 The Planning Commission shall also act as the Zoning Commission., and shall have the power to 

prepare and recommend to the City Council zoning district boundaries and appropriate 

regulations relating to the height, number of stories and size of buildings and other structures, 

the percentage of lot that may be occupied, the size of yards, courts and other open spaces, the 

density of population, the location and use of buildings, structures and land for trade, industry, 

residences and other purposes. 

 

SECTION 2. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict here with are 

hereby repealed to the extent of any such conflict. 

 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY. If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion 

of this Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court 

of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 

remaining portion of this ordinance. 

 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session on 

this         day of                  , 2015 
       CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Eva Smith, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

K. Ellis Ritchie, City Attorney 

Dated:____________________  



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-_____ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 10 BY ADDING CHAPTER 1A SECTIONS 1, 2, 3, AND 4 TO THE 

CITY CODE OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, MAYES COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, 

REGARDING ZONING COMMISSION CREATION AND COMPOSITION; QUORUM; MEETINGS, 

ORGANIZATION AND RULES; POWERS, DUTIES AND AUTHORITIES THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR 

REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR, AND THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

PRYOR CREEK, MAYES COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, TO-WIT: 

SECTION 1. 

1. Title 10 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pryor Creek, Mayes County, State of 

 Oklahoma is hereby amended by adding a new Chapter 1A, Sections 1, 2, 3, and 4 as 

follows, to-wit: 

 

CHAPTER 1A 

ZONING COMMISSION 

 

SECTION: 

10-1A-1: Created; Composition 

10-1A-2: Quorum 

10-1A-3: Meetings; Organization, Rules 

10-1A-4: Powers, Duties And Authority 

 

 

10-1A-1: CREATED; COMPOSITION; COMPENSATION: 

The Planning Commission of the City is appointed by the City to serve as the Zoning Commission 

of the City.  Members of the Zoning Commission shall serve without compensation in like 

manner as the Planning Commission. 

 

10-1A-2  QUORUM: 

Five (5) members of the Zoning Commission shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of 

business.  When a quorum is present a vote by the simple majority of the members present shall 

be required for the transaction of business of the Commission. 

 

10-1A-3  MEETINGS; ORGANIZATION, RULES: 

Meetings of the Zoning Commission shall be held at the call of the chairperson and at such other 

times as the Commission may determine.  The provisions of the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act, 

OKLA. STAT. Tit. 25 §§ 301 et seq. as it now exists or as it may hereinafter be amended by the 

Oklahoma Legislature shall apply to all public meetings of the Commission.  The members of the 



Zoning Commission shall, in June of each year, elect from their members a chairperson, a vice 

chairperson and secretary, who shall serve in their elected office for a period of one (1) year and 

shall adopt from time to time such bylaws, rules and regulations and amendments thereto as 

may be necessary to effectuate the purposes of this Chapter. 

 

10-1A-4  POWERS, DUTIES AND AURHTORITY: 

 

A. General Powers, Duties And Authority: 

For the purpose of promoting health, safety, morals or the general welfare of the community 

the Commission shall prepare and recommend to the City Council regulations relating to the 

height, number of stories, and size of buildings and other structures, the percentage of lot that 

may be occupied, the size of yards, courts and other open spaces, the density of population, and 

the location and use of buildings, structures and land for trade, industry, residence or other 

purposes.  The Zoning Commission shall inure to such other powers and be obligated to the 

performance of such other duties as shall be prescribed to it by the ordinances of the City or 

laws of the state of Oklahoma. 

 

B. Districts And Regulations: 

The Commission shall prepare and recommend to the City Council the division of the City into 

districts of such number, shape and area as it deems suitable in carrying out its powers as to 

buildings, land and structures.  The Commission shall prepare and recommend to the City 

Council regulations concerning the erection, construction, reconstruction, alteration, repair or 

use of buildings, structures or land within the districts.  All such regulations shall be uniform for 

each class or kind of buildings throughout each district, but the regulations in one district may 

differ from those in other districts. 

 

C. Purpose Of Regulations; Accordance With Comprehensive Plan 

The regulations concerning buildings, structures and land prepared and recommended by the 

Commission to the City Council shall be made in accordance with the City's Comprehensive Plan 

and be designed to accomplish any of the following objectives: 

 (1) To lessen congestion in the streets; 

 (2) To secure safety from fire, panic and other dangers; 

(3) To promote health and the general welfare, including the peace and quality of life of the 

district; 

 (4) To provide adequate light and air; 

 (5) To prevent the overcrowding of land; 

 (6) To promote historical preservation; 

 (7) To avoid undue concentration of population; or 

(8) To facilitate the adequate provision of transportation, water, sewerage, schools, parks 

and other public requirements.   

The regulations prepared and recommended by the Commission to the City Council shall be 

made with reasonable consideration, among other things, as to the character of the district and 



its peculiar suitability for particular uses, and with a view to conserving the value of buildings 

and encouraging the most appropriate use of land throughout the City. 

 

D. EMPLOYMENT OF STAFF, 

 PAYMENT of EXPENSES: 

The Zoning Commission shall have the power and authority to employ engineers, attorneys, 

clerks and a secretary, or other personnel or consultants as it shall deem reasonable and 

necessary for the performance of its powers and duties subject to approval of such employment 

of personnel or consultants by the City Council and upon such terms of employment as the City 

Council may approve.  The compensation of such personnel or consultants shall be paid out of 

the City Treasury as other officers, employees or consultants.  The necessary expenses incurred 

by the Zoning Commission incurred in the performance of its powers and duties shall be 

appropriated and paid out of the City Treasury as other legally incurred expenses of the 

Municipality but in no event may the Zoning Commission be authorized to create a deficiency. 

 

ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK WITH THE 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE BEING VOTED ON AND APPROVED SEPARATELY THIS 

_____ DAY OF ___________________, 2015.  

 

       __________________________________ 

ATTEST:      JIMMY TRAMEL, MAYOR 

 

____________________________ 

EVA SMITH, CITY CLERK 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

____________________________ 

K. ELLIS RITCHIE 

Dated:   _________________, 2015 
 

 



OKLAHOMA MAIN STREET™ AGREEMENT 
For Start-Up Main Street Communities 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT is entered into and executed by the State of Oklahoma, Department of 

Commerce/Oklahoma Main Street Center (hereinafter referred to as the “STATE”) and    

    (hereinafter referred to as the “PARTICIPANT”). 
 

 WHEREAS, this Agreement is for the purpose of implementing services through the 

STATE in the town/city of ____________________ county of _______________________, State of 

Oklahoma, so as to assist in the revitalization of the downtown/urban area of ____________________, 

Oklahoma and 
 

 WHEREAS, the STATE, desires to provide service to Oklahoma localities.  In order that 

the STATE might accomplish this goal and that the city of ____________________ shall be 

included as a city benefiting from these services the following Agreement is undertaken for the 

period between July 1, 2015 and June 30, 2016. 
 
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

SECTION I.  STATE agrees to perform the following services: 
 

 1. Provide a continuing liaison with the National Trust Main Street Center (NTMSC) through the 

STATE to handle all communications between the PARTICIPANT, NTMSC and STATE.  

STATE shall also act as liaison between public and private organizations with interests in 

downtown and neighborhood business district development and preservation. 
 

 2. Designate the city/urban district of                                                                      as an official and 

active Oklahoma Main Street community. 
 

 3. Provide services utilizing STATE staff and/or NTMSC staff and/or other consultants as 

identified by STATE.  Services provided within the year to be determined at the beginning of 

each calendar year during Organizational Training visits to new towns or Assessment visits to 

second and third year towns. 
 

 4. Conduct meetings and workshops to further develop and refine the skills of local program 

managers, board members and committee members.  Additional services to be provided include 

marketing opportunities for the program, recognition of program achievements and presentations 

promoting successes. 
 

 5. Help in selection of new program manager (if requested) via discussions with board to evaluate 

needs, telephone conversations with prospective applicants, screening of resumes, or 

participation in interview process. 
 

6. If a change in program manager occurs during term of Agreement, conduct a one-day, on-site visit to 

help train and orient new manager AND assist in securing location for an official Main Street program 

manager training session out of state, or admit to Oklahoma training program if one is available. 

(PARTICIPANT responsible for all costs.) 

 

 7. Provide advice and information to the local program manager on a continuing basis as staff time allows. 
 

 8. Provide year-end evaluation with STATE staff to review program accomplishments, review goals

 and program of work for coming year and to discuss national designation based on the NTMSC 12 

 Criteria for evaluation for following year. 



2 

 

9. Provide PARTICIPANT with related program information through regular resource mailings, e-mail and 

announcements to program manager. 
 

10. Provide Design Assistance by STATE Architect.  Such services include: 

 On-site Design assistance and training according to community’s year of participation 

(first, second, third). 

 Design assistance delivered as determined by a schedule established by STATE Architect. 

 Bonus projects with approved completion of Design assistance projects. 

 Level of assistance determined by STATE Architect. 

 Details for Design assistance process and on-site design assistance and training provided in 

separate documents. 

 Phone consultations and product literature as needed. 
 

11. Provide Economic Restructuring (ER) Assistance by STATE Business Management Consultant, to 

include:  

 One-on-one consultation with business owners within defined local Main Street district 

 Business Education Workshops 

 Training for Oklahoma Main Street Economic Restructuring (ER) Committee 
 

 Design and/or Economic Restructuring (ER) services and resources will be withheld at any 

time during the calendar year if any one of the following stipulations occur: 

 Failure to submit Annual Agreement 

 Failure of program manager to submit Annual Work plans 

 Failure to submit Monthly Reinvestment Figures. 

 Failure of program manager or Board of Director’s representative to attend required-

attendance trainings. 

 Failure to participate in year-end evaluations/Resource Team evaluations/technical 

evaluations. 
 

 12. PARTICIPANT must maintain connection to OMSC via Internet Service Provider with periodic 

updates of computer equipment.   
 

13. STATE agrees to pay membership to the NTMSC for the first three (3) years of program’s participation, 

based upon funds being available to STATE. 
 

 

SECTION II.  

To maintain designation as an Oklahoma Main Street Community, PARTICIPANT agrees to: 

 

1.  Maintain an independent volunteer board of directors representative of all downtown elements to  

oversee the continuing development of the local Main Street program for the term of this letter of  

Agreement. The organization must be established specifically to implement the Oklahoma Main  

Street Program and structured similarly to the organization chart shown in Exhibit F.  

 

2.  Implement a comprehensive approach to downtown revitalization following the Four-Point  

Approach methodology ascribed by the NTMSC, including development of annual written work 

plan1 for the local Main Street organization and continuance of a strong committee system to 

include but not be limited to the following committees: Design, Economic Restructuring, Promotion, 

and Organization, to be labeled Exhibit A. 

                                                 
1Work plan approved by STATE for first year towns must be submitted within three months of training.  Work plans for 

second and third year towns must be submitted with agreement, Exhibit A. 



3 

 

3. Maintain professional staff as defined below. Paid compensation should be at local market rates for  

competitive positions. Place an “X” in the applicable staff requirements for your program.  

Population based on the 2010 Oklahoma census. 
 

 Small Towns (under 5,000 population):  Commit to hire, retain and supervise one paid 

employee who would be required to work at least 20 hours per week to direct the program.  These 20 

hours will be dedicated to Main Street work only and not applied to any other organization. 

  Mid-Size Towns (5,000 – 50,000 population):  Commit to hire, retain and supervise one paid 

employee who would be required to work at least 40 hours per week to direct the program. 

 Urban Districts (50,000 or more population):  Commit to hire enough paid staff to effectively 

oversee day-to-day program operations.  The number of paid staff will depend upon the physical size 

of the district, the number of businesses within the area, community population in 2000 and other 

demographic criteria.   
 

A sample description of Main Street manager duties and qualifications are attached as Exhibit B and 

incorporated herein.  In the event the Main Street Manager position is vacated during the term of this 

Agreement, PARTICIPANT agrees to fill the position within a reasonable time with a person 

meeting the qualifications as attached.  STATE reserves the right to review Main Street 

designation if position is vacated for more than four (4) months. Upon replacing a Manager, 

the new Main Street Manager will be required to attend a comprehensive Main Street training 

program (the first available or within four months) or provide records of prior attendance.  

STATE must approve the training received or to be received. 

  

4.  Maintain the focus of the local Main Street Program on the downtown or defined urban district, 

concentrating program activities within the designated Main Street Program as set forth in the 

Application. 

 

5. Require program representation at the following Main Street training sessions: (1) two quarterly 

trainings (up to 3 days each), (2) the Statewide Preservation Conference and (3) the National Trust 

Main Streets Conference.  Eligible attendees may be the program manager, a member of the Board 

of Directors, a committee member and/or other Main Street volunteers.  PARTICIPANT shall be 

responsible for the attendee’s travel costs and other expenses associated with these training sessions. 

 

6. Maintain thorough records and photographic documentation for monitoring the progress of the Main 

Street program and regularly submit documentation on or before the identified deadlines to the 

STATE, to include but not limited to the following items: 

 Monthly Reinvestment Reports using the computer format provided by STATE 

 Completed Yearly Evaluation Reports (Exhibits D) 

 A copy of materials relating to the Main Street Program published during the program year, i.e., 

brochures, news or magazine articles, directories, etc. 

 Other information requested by STATE.  

 

7. Assist as requested by STATE in arrangements for technical assistance and public relations visits to 

the community. 

 

8. Manage the provision of STATE's Design assistance to local property owners and merchants by: 

 Maintaining a Design Committee to assist the program manager in managing design projects; 

 Having all Design Committee members and the program manager attend Main Street Design 

training as recommended by the STATE; 



4 

 Insuring that applicants receiving Design assistance view the compact disc (cd) presentation 

"Making Good Design Happen" or "Signs of a Successful Main Street" whichever is 

appropriate for their project, prior to meeting with the STATE Architect; and 

 Complete and submit all proper “Design” assistance materials needed by STATE Architect. 

 

9. Manage the provision of STATE’s Economic Restructuring (ER) assistance to local business owners. 

 

10. Submit and subsequently execute an annual comprehensive work plan and budget (Exhibits A & C). 

The proposed workplan and budget must be approved by STATE.  Due July 17, 2015. 

 

11. PARTICIPANT must maintain connection to OMSC via Internet Service Provider.  Periodic updates 

of computer equipment are required.  The President of the Board or board designee must have an 

active e-mail address to receive and review correspondence from state Main Street Staff and other 

Oklahoma Main Street Program communities. 

 

12. Attach a resolution from the municipal governing board showing support for the Main Street 

Program.  See Exhibit E.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



5 

SECTION III.  The parties hereto otherwise agree as follows: 

 

1. The term of this Agreement shall be from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016. 

2. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement, if funds anticipated for the continued 

fulfillment of the Agreement are at any time not forthcoming or insufficient, either through the 

failure of the State of Oklahoma to appropriate funds, discontinuance or material alteration of the 

program for which funds were provided, then STATE shall have the right to amend or terminate 

this Agreement without penalty by giving the community not less than sixty (60) days written 

notice. 

3. If PARTICIPANT fails to fulfill in timely and proper manner its obligations under this Agreement, 

or if PARTICIPANT shall violate any of the terms of this Agreement, the STATE shall have the 

right to immediately terminate this Agreement and withhold further services under the Agreement.  

The STATE may elect to place PARTICIPANT on probation for violation of any of the terms of 

this Agreement and withhold services until the PARTICIPANT corrects the problem.  

 

In WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement: 

 

BY:  __________________________________ __________________ 

  Donald R. Hackler Jr.  (Date) 

  Deputy Director 

  Oklahoma Department of Commerce 

 

  Approved as to form: 

 

BY:  __________________________________ ___________________ 

  Linda Barnett (Date) 

  State Director  

  Oklahoma Main Street Center  
 

 

 

BY:  _______________________________ __________________ 

  (Board President/Chair) (Date) 
 

 

  ______________________________________________________ 

  (Name of downtown Main Street Organization) 
 

 

BY:  _______________________________  __________________ 

  (Main Street Program Manager) (Date) 
 

 

  ______________________________________________________ 

  (Name of downtown Main Street Organization) 



6 

 

REQUIRED EXHIBITS SUPPIED BY PARTICIPANT 
(To be attached to Agreement) 

 

 

EXHIBIT A:  

 

Annual Work plan in the format provided by STATE. Due July 17, 2015. 

 

EXHIBIT B: 

 

Main Street Program Manager Description and Qualifications to be signed by Manager and Board Chair. 

(Submit for first year town or if description has changed since last year.) 

If description and qualifications remain the same as last year, indicate by checking this box:   

 

EXHIBIT C: 

 

Calendar Year 2015 Budget.  Due no later than July 17, 2015.  

 

 

EXHIBIT D: 

 

Year-End Community Evaluation & Narrative – use survey form provided. 

 

 

EXHIBIT E: 

 

Resolution of Support from the municipal governing body. 

 

EXHIBIT F: 

 

Organization Chart 



7 

EXHIBIT B 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sample of Main Street Program Manager Job Description 
 

The Main Street Program is a comprehensive program, which requires many skills.  The Program 

Manager is responsible for the development, conduct, execution and documentation of the program.  A 

program manager is the principal on-site staff person responsible for coordinating all program activities 

locally as well as representing the community regionally and nationally as appropriate. 

 

The manager cannot be the one person doing all the work.  When a program becomes too dependent on 

the manager to do everything there is a very real danger of failure for the program due to burn out of 

the manager, and when he/she leaves, the Board is not strong enough to hold the program together.  

The board is responsible to maximize the time of the manager.  The manager position is one of 

coordination and implementation not necessarily doing the work; the contact person for the community 

that serves as the local expert for downtown. 

 

Some of the activities and duties are as follows: 

 

Develop and conduct public awareness and education programs designed to enhance appreciation of 

downtown’s architecture and other assets. 

Keep program and its goals and objectives constantly in public eye through speaking engagements, 

radio, television appearances and newspaper interviews. 

Develop action plan for implementing a downtown revitalization program focused on four areas:  

design, promotion, organization, and economic restructuring. 

Assist individual tenants and property owners with physical improvements to property through 

personal consultation or through professional design consultants.  Assist in locating appropriate 

contractors and materials; when possible, participate in construction supervision and provide advice 

on necessary financial mechanisms. 

Work with downtown organizations and encourage improvements in their abilities to undertake joint 

activities such as promotions, advertising, uniform store hours, special events, business recruiting, 

parking, etc.  Encourage cooperative climate between downtown interest and local public officials. 

Assist in coordination of joint promotional events such as seasonal festivals, sidewalk sales, etc. with 

the goal of improving the quality and excitement of events to attract people downtown. 

Work with private-sector institutions and appropriate public agencies at local and state levels to obtain 

necessary funding for critical elements of the work program.  These elements include design 

assistance, promotional publications, building rehabilitation and parking and public improvements. 

Develop and maintain a system for monitoring changes in public and private investment in the 

downtown, job creation, business retention, expansion and recruitment, the creation of individual 

building files and the thorough photographic documentation of all changes. 

Represent the community at prominent conferences on the state and national levels. 

 

In addition to the above, there are other management responsibilities such as:  operation of the office; 

budget development; purchasing; record keeping; supervision of other employees (if any); and 

preparation of reports required by local board, state Main Street organization and/or sponsoring 

institutions.  The program manager also establishes a resource file and library and maintains all 

program records in an orderly manner. 



8 

 

EXHIBIT C 

  

Program Budget Example – Calendar Year 

 

Category                                    CASH ($)             In-Kind                    Total 

Payroll -Base Salary               ____________     ____________         ____________     

              Taxes                        ____________     ____________         ____________ 

              Insurance                  ____________     ____________         ____________    

Office Expense: 

  Rent                          ____________     ____________         ____________      

 Utilities                     ____________     ____________         ____________      

 Equipment                 ____________     ____________         ____________     

 Supplies                     ____________     ____________         ____________      

 Telephone / Fax         ____________     ____________         ____________       

 Postage                      ____________     ____________         ____________                                             

 Other                         ____________     ____________         ____________  

Professional Development: 

 Travel                        ____________     ____________         ____________ 

 Materials                    ____________     ____________         ____________  

 Conferences               ____________     ____________         ____________ 

Promotion: 

 Printing / Copying     ____________     ____________         ____________ 

 Advertising                ____________     ____________         ____________ 

 Other                          ____________     ____________         ____________ 

Committee Expenses: 

 Executive                   ____________     ____________         ____________ 

 Fundraising                ____________     ____________         ____________    

 Membership               ____________     ____________         ____________ 

 Promotion                  ____________     ____________         ____________ 

 Design                        ____________     ____________         ____________  

Economic Restructuring           ____________     ____________         ____________ 

 

Total Expenses                        ____________     ____________         ____________   

   

 

 



9 

EXHIBIT D 
 

Year-End Community Evaluation 

 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 

As part of the Oklahoma Main Street Program services and the National Trust Main Street Center's 

services a year-end evaluation of the progress of the local Main Street Program will be conducted.  This 

evaluation form, along with the monthly reports, and site visits to the community by the Oklahoma Main 

Street Program staff constitute the basis of the analysis of the local program. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 

1. Program Manager   
 

 Board Chair   
 

         Chairs of standing committees: 
 

 Promotion                         _____________________________________ 
   

 Design                               _____________________________________ 
 

 Economic Restructuring   _____________________________________ 
 

 Organization                     _____________________________________ 

 

2. Tax status of local Main Street Program [501 (c) (3), (4) or (6)]    

 

3. Current city population    Current county population     

 
ORGANIZATION 
 

  Workshops/seminars conducted by the local Main Street Program during last year. 

    

    

    

    

    



10 

PROMOTION 
1. Existing 

promotional activities 

assisted by Main Street 

 

# completed in 

last 12 months 

2. New 

promotional activities 

begun by Main Street 

 

# completed in 

last 12 months 

Retail sales  Retail sales  

Special events  Special events  

Image-building events  Image-building events  
 

3. Which media are used to inform the public about the goals, objectives, activities and accomplishments 

of the local Main Street Program? 
Medium Used Frequency 
 

Brochures/printed materials _____ __________ 

Newspaper - press releases _____ __________ 

Radio-PSAs _____ __________ 

Television PSA _____ __________ 

Main Street newsletters _____ __________ 

Mailings  _____ __________ 

Public presentations _____ __________ 

Individual meetings _____ __________ 

Other (                         ) _____ __________ 

Other (                         ) _____ __________ 

 

DESIGN 
Workshops / seminars conducted by the local Main Street Program during the year. 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Describe local design incentives – if any.   
 

Number of visits by State Architect or designee: _____  Number of property owners met: ______ 
 

Number of buildings added to the National Register: _____ 
 

Number of Façade Renderings:  Submitted ____  Completed ____  Implemented ____ 

 

ECONOMIC RESTRUCTURING 
1.  Have any economic incentive programs been established?       Yes      No 

If yes, describe program(s) and results:  

 ____________________________________________________________________ 
 

2.  Has a business assistance program been established?         Yes    No 

  If yes, describe activities:_________________________________________________________ 

            _____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

3.  Has a business retention program been established?           Yes     No 

  If yes, describe activities:    

     

4.        Has a new business start-up program been established?      Yes     No 

  If yes, describe activities:    

     



11 

NARRATIVE  (Use additional paper) 

 

1. Describe the interaction of the Board, Committees and Program Manager. 

 

 

 

2. Describe the impact of the Main Street Program on local (city and/or county) legislation. 

 

 

 

3. Describe the impact of special events assisted or begun by the Main Street Program.  Specify if 

possible, attendance, cost, revenue generated (if applicable) and event co-sponsors. 

 

 

 

4. Describe the effects of retail promotional activities assisted or begun by the Main Street Program. 

 

 

 

5. Describe the impact of physical (design) changes in the downtown. 

 

 

 

6. Describe the economic impact of the Main Street Program on the downtown and the community, 

including the change in property values and rental rates – if applicable and if available 

 

 

 

7. Describe the local Main Street Program's greatest success to date.  

 

 

 

8. Describe the local Main Street Program’s greatest failure. 

 

 

 

9. Describe the local Main Street Program’s greatest continuing problem. 

 

 

 

10. Describe the direction the local Main Street Program should take in the next year. 

 

 



12 

EXHIBIT E 

 

RESOLUTION # 2015 - ________ 
 

A resolution supporting continued participation in the Main Street Program. 

 

WHEREAS, the Oklahoma Main Street Center has been established in the Oklahoma Department of 

Commerce to assist small towns and cities to develop a public/private effort to revitalize their “Main 

Street” areas, and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Pryor Creek desires to participate in the Oklahoma Main Street Program, 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PRYOR 

CREEK: 

 

SECTION 1.  That the City of Pryor Creek supports the participation in the 2015/2016 Oklahoma Main 

Street Program with the specific goal of revitalizing the historic central business district using the Main 

Street 4-Point Approach to economic revitalization. 

 

SECTION 2.  That the City of Pryor Creek understands that the Main Street Approach is a long-term 

process that results in a continual effort to maintain and enhance downtown. 

 

ADOPTED THIS   DAY OF  , 20  . 

 

 

 

 

  ________________________  

  Mayor 

 

 

 

  

Attest  

 

  

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



13 

EXHIBIT G 
 

P
ro

g
ra

m

M
a
n

a
g

e
r

V
o
lu

n
te

e
r

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

C
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o
n

s
/

P
u

b
li
c
 R

e
la

ti
o
n

s

F
u

n
d

ra
is

in
g

O
rg

a
n

iz
a
ti
o
n

M
a
rk

e
ti
n

g

S
tr

a
te

g
y

Im
a
g

e

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

R
e
ta

il

P
ro

m
o
ti
o
n

s

S
p

e
c
ia

l

E
v
e
n

ts

P
ro

m
o
ti
o
n

P
u

b
li
c

S
p

a
c
e
s

B
u

il
d

in
g

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

ts

D
e
s
ig

n

E
d

u
c
a
ti
o
n

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t

D
e
s
ig

n

M
a
rk

e
t

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h

B
u

s
in

e
s
s

A
s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l

A
s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

P
ro

p
e
rt

y

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

E
c
o
n

o
m

ic

R
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n

g

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

(O
ff
ic

e
rs

)

B
o
a
rd

 o
f 
D

ir
e
c
to

rs
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l

A
d

v
o
c
a
c
y

P
o
li
c
y

P
la

n
n

in
g

P
e
rs

o
n

n
e
l

































































RESOLUTION 2015 - ________ 

 

WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma (hereinafter called the “City”), and 
the Pryor Public Works Authority, an Oklahoma public trust (hereinafter called the “Authority”), entered 
into a certain Sales Tax Agreement (hereinafter called the “Agreement”), dated December 1, 2011, whereby 
the City agrees to make payments to the Authority in amounts sufficient to pay when due principal and 
interest on the Authority’s Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2011, and other obligations of the 
Authority as therein provided; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary that such Agreement be renewed, ratified and affirmed for the fiscal 
years of the City ending June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2016. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PRYOR 
CREEK, OKLAHOMA: 

SECTION 1.  The Sales Tax Agreement dated December 1, 2011, between the City and the 
Authority, is hereby renewed, ratified and affirmed by the governing body of the City of Pryor Creek, 
Oklahoma, for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2016. 

Adopted this ______ day of July, 2015. 

 

     __________________________________________ 

     Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

City Clerk 

(SEAL) 

 








